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OFF-LIMITS MATERIALS

The following materials are off-limits during the Spring 2007 Ames Moot Court Semi-Final Round Competition, and no team member may cite or consult them:

· Any and all court papers, briefs, transcripts of proceedings, audio recordings of proceedings, attorney work product, or court records (except reported judicial decisions) from any case addressing the issues raised in this case.

· Any and all law review articles, bar journal articles, or similar publications that analyze the issues raised in this case and which are not yet publicly available through publication either in print, on Lexis or Westlaw, or on the Internet. In the event that a team or one of its members has already had access to such a publication, disclosure of the title and author of the publication and the circumstances in which it was accessed must be made to Julie Barton, HLS ‘92 (julietbarton@hotmail.com) and Meryl Kessler, HLS ‘93 (merylkessler@comcast.net) and to the opposing team.  In such circumstances, arrangements will be made to afford the opposing team access to the publication in question, and both teams will be required to treat the publication in question as confidential unless the author or copyright owner of the publication agrees otherwise. Publications by practitioners and students are included in this prohibition; however, no team member is required to disclose his or her own related scholarship.

· Any studies or surveys beyond those explicitly included in the Record.  Nor may any team member use any material external to the record to undermine, support, or elaborate on any studies or surveys referred to in the Record.

Promptly direct any questions about this policy for Off-Limits Materials to Julie Barton or Meryl Kessler.
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COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Mammoth Oil Co., Inc. (“Mammoth”) brings this action against Defendant Bantam Oil Co. Inc. (“Bantam”) for violation of Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. §§1961 et seq. (“RICO”) and defamation.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. Mammoth brings this action pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1961 et seq. to recover for business losses directly and proximately caused by reason of Defendant’s pattern of racketeering activity.  

2. This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331 and 18 U.S.C. §1964(c).

3. Venue is appropriate in this Court under 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) because a substantial part of the events giving rise to Mammoth’s claims occurred within this district.

4. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Mammoth’s state law claims under 28 U.S.C. §1367(a) because these claims are so related to Mammoth’s RICO claims that they form part of the same case or controversy because they arise from the same nucleus of operative fact and amount to a single judicial proceeding.

PARTIES

5. Plaintiff Mammoth is a Delaware corporation having an office and principal place of business in Ames City, Ames.

6. Defendant Bantam is a Delaware corporation having an office and principal place of business in Ames City, Ames.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

7. Mammoth is one of the largest petrochemical companies in the world and is the largest supplier of gasoline in the United States.  The Mammoth brand serves motorists at over 30 thousand service stations and provides nearly 1 million industrial and wholesale customers with quality fuel products. 

8. In Fiscal Year 2005, Mammoth’s total revenue was over $300 billion and its net revenue was nearly $35 billion.

9. Bantam is a petrochemical company whose gasoline is distributed at about 8,000 service centers and provided to about 30,000 industrial and wholesale customers.

10. In Fiscal Year 2005, Bantam’s total revenue was approximately $50 billion and its net revenue was approximately $5 billion.

11. Mammoth and Bantam are direct competitors in all fifty of the United States and in many overseas markets.

12. Mass Marketing and Media, Inc. (“Mass Marketing”) is an Ames corporation having an office and principal place of business in Ames City, Ames.

13. On information and belief, Mass Marketing is a firm in the business of producing and promoting advertisements and mass marketing campaigns for a variety of products and services.  
14. On information and belief, Mass Marketing has been providing advertising and marketing services to clients for over 30 years and currently has over 200 accounts.  

15. On information and belief, Mass Marketing uses a variety of conventional means to promote its clients’ products and services including print, radio, and television advertisement campaigns.

16. On information and belief, Mass Marketing also uses “guerilla marketing” techniques, which is the use of unconventional marketing intended to get maximum results from minimal resources.  Some examples of guerilla marketing include word-of-mouth campaigns, reaching consumers directly through their daily routines, telemarketing, billboards, direct mail campaigns, and circulars and brochures.  

17. On information and belief, Mass Marketing also engages in “viral marketing” and “viral advertising,” which refer to marketing techniques that seek to exploit pre-existing social networks to produce exponential increases in brand awareness through viral processes similar to the spread of an epidemic. Viral marketing is word-of-mouth marketing delivered and enhanced online; it harnesses the network effect of the Internet and can be very useful in reaching a large number of people rapidly.  Viral marketing is sometimes used to describe some sorts of Internet-based stealth marketing campaigns—including the use of emails, blogs, and seemingly amateur web sites—to create apparently spontaneous (but actually highly manipulated) word-of-mouth marketing for a product or service. 

18. On information and belief, Bantam has been a client of Mass Media since at least 1998.  See Advertising Age news story, dated February 9, 1998, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix A.  During this time, Mass Media has launched several conventional print advertising and marketing campaigns for Bantam.  See Bantam print advertisement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix B.  

19. On information and belief, in February 2006, Mass Media launched a “viral marketing” campaign for Bantam.  The campaign involved the sending of an email (the “Bantam Email”) to thousands of email accounts encouraging the recipients to stop buying gasoline from Mammoth.  The email, whose true source was not identified, purported to come from a grassroots organization, Gasoline For All, and falsely stated that Mammoth was engaged in a practice of “price gouging” which was driving gasoline prices up.  See the Bantam Email, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix C.  

20. On information and belief, Gasoline for All is a fictitious organization created for Bantam by and through Mass Media.

21. The Bantam Email exhorted each recipient to send the email on to ten more recipients.  According to the email, if each recipient sent the email to ten new recipients, 300 million people would receive the Bantam Email in 8 days.

22. On information and belief, the Bantam Email reached millions of recipients in the United States.

23. From February 2006 through September 2006, Mammoth received hundreds of thousands of letters and emails from consumers who claimed to have received the Bantam email and indicated that they were boycotting Mammoth gasoline.

24. On information and belief, the Bantam Email was conceived of and drafted by Teresa Chu (“Chu”), Director of Internet Marketing and Advertising of Mass Marketing.  On information and belief, Chu has held this position at Mass Marketing since June 2003 and is considered an industry leader in the creation of viral marketing campaigns.

25.  On information and belief, Chu worked closely with Amy Weber (“Weber”), Bantam’s Executive Vice President for Sales & Marketing, to devise the Bantam Email.  

26. On information and belief, Weber authorized and/or approved of Mass Marketing’s creation and dissemination of the Bantam Email.

27. By reason of the Bantam Email, sales of Mammoth gasoline in the United States dropped 22 percent between February 1, 2006 and September 30, 2006.  During the same period, the price of Mammoth stock fell from $56 per share to $37 per share.

28. By reason of the Bantam Email, sales of Bantam gasoline in the United States rose 15 percent between February 1, 2006 and September 30, 2006.  During the same period, the price of Bantam stock rose from $22 per share to $34 per share.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF (RICO, 18 U.S.C. §1962(c))

29. Mammoth realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 28 as if set forth herein in full.

30. Bantam, through and with its marketing and advertising agent, Mass Marketing, perpetrated a “viral marketing” scheme which entailed sending thousands of fraudulent Bantam Emails to consumers beginning in February 2006 with the intent to deceive consumers, inflict business losses on Mammoth, and enrich Bantam.

31. Each Bantam Email sent by either Bantam or Mass Marketing constituted an act of wire fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1343.

32. Bantam and Mass Marketing form an association-in-fact enterprise within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. §1961(3).  Bantam and Mass Marketing share the common purpose of increasing Bantam’s sales and stock price.

33. The association-in-fact enterprise consisting of Bantam and Mass Marketing is an enterprise engaged in and/or enterprise whose activities affect interstate commerce within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. §1962(c).

34. Bantam and Mass Marketing engaged in a pattern of racketeering activity within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. §1961(5) and 1962(c) by engaging in a continuing pattern of wire frauds that have caused, and continue to cause, Mammoth the financial loss described above.

35. Because Mammoth has been injured in its business by reason of the racketeering activity described above, Mammoth is entitled to recover threefold for the damages it has sustained pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1964(c).

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF (DEFAMATION)

36. Mammoth realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 35 as if set forth herein in full.

37. Defendant knowingly and intentionally slandered, libeled and defamed Mammoth or have allowed Plaintiffs to be slandered, labeled, and defamed by publishing or allowing to be published the false, malicious, and non-privileged statements concerning Mammoth and its products, which proximately caused harm and damages to Mammoth’s reputation, prestige and standing as well as Mammoth’s business and products.

38. As a result of Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiffs have suffered damages in an amount to be determined at trial.

Defendant’s conduct was undertaken in bad faith, was malicious, and manifested a wanton disregard of and reckless indifference towards the rights of Mammoth, thereby entitling Mammoth to punitive or exemplary damages. judgment in favor of Mammoth and against Defendant as follows:

a. Granting injunctive relief sufficient to terminate all of Defendant’s actionable conduct;

b. Awarding Mammoth damages in an amount to be determined by this Court to compensate for the financial losses suffered by Mammoth as a result of Defendant’s racketeering activity and defamatory conduct; 

c. Ordering the trebling of these compensatory damages, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1964(c) and 15 U.S.C. §1117; 

39. Awarding Mammoth reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

d. WHEREFORE, Mammoth respectfully asks this Court to grant accordance with 18 U.S.C. §1964(c) and 15 U.S.C. §1117; and,

e. Granting such other relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

MAMMOTH OIL CO., INC., 

By:  Jeanne A. Donner
Jeanne A. Donner, Esq.

Attorney for the Plaintiff

Dated: October 15, 2006
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Mass Marketing Wins Bantam Oil Advertising Account

Agency Beats Out TM, McCann and Burnett

By Lisa Sanders 

Published: February 09, 1998 

NEW YORK (AdAge.com) -- Bantam Oil has awarded creative advertising duties for its corporate branding to Mass Marketing and Media, according to the agency. 

TM was incumbent
The decision concludes a review that began in October 1996. Mass Marketing bested incumbent Interpublic Group of Companies' TM, Irving, Texas; Interpublic's McCann Erickson, New York; and Publicis Groupe's Leo Burnett USA, Chicago. 

It is unclear whether media buying and planning is affected by this review. 

Corporate spending
Corporate spending at Bantam Oil, based in Ames City, Ames, was $5 million in 1996 and for the first ten months of 1997 rose to $6.5 million. Spending for the coming years is estimated at $10 million, according to one executive familiar with the matter. 

Calls to Bantam Oil were not returned at press time. 

Appendix B

Energy is too precious a resource to take lightly. It is essential to our way of life. Essential to economic progress. Essential to raising living standards for over five billion people in the developing world. And, because we take energy seriously, we take our responsibilities seriously too. In how we look for it. How we retrieve it.   How we transport it.  How we process it.  And how we use it.  
    Energy and the environment.         As global energy demand
grows (and it will, by as much as 50% in the next 25 years), we will not shirk our responsibility to find ways to meet it - and ways to reduce the emissions this rising demand will inevitably create. It's a huge challenge. On one hand, the world demands more and more energy. On the other, it demands less and less environmental impact. Meeting this challenge - on a global scale -will take all the technology and human ingenuity we can muster. That's why, for decades, we have consistently led the industry in research and technology. And why we're now making the largest ever investment in independent climate and energy research that is specifically designed to look for new breakthrough technologies. The world faces enormous energy challenges. There are no easy answers. It will take straightforward, honest dialogue about the hard truths that confront us all. Wishful thinking must not cloud real thinking. New energy initiatives, however appealing they may sound, must also be practical, viable, and economical - worldwide. However tough the issues, our answers must reflect the real world. Energy is simply too important to treat in any other way.

Bantam Oil
 Solving the world's energy problems

Appendix C

GAS WAR - an idea that WILL work

>
>         Join the resistance!!!! I hear we are going to
>         hit close to $ 4.00 a gallon by next summer and it might
>         go higher!! Want gasoline prices to come down? We
>         need to take some intelligent, united action.  Here is a plan 
>         that can really work. Please read on and join with us!
>
>         By now you're probably thinking gasoline priced at
>         about $1.50 is super cheap. Me too! It is currently
>         $2.79 for regular unleaded in my town. Now that the
>         oil companies and the OPEC nations have conditioned us
>         to think that the cost of a gallon of gas is CHEAP at
>         $1.50 - $1.75, we need to take aggressive action to
>         teach them that BUYERS control the marketplace…not
>         sellers. With the price of gasoline going up more each
>         day, we consumers need to take action. The only way we
>         are going to see the price of gas come down is if we
>         hit someone in the pocketbook by not purchasing their
>         gas! And, we can do that WITHOUT hurting ourselves.
>         How?
>
>         Since we all rely on our cars, we can't just stop
>         buying gas. But we CAN have an impact on gas prices if
>         we all act together to force a price war.
>
>         Here's the idea: For the rest of this year, DON'T
>         purchase ANY gasoline from the biggest company,
>         MAMMOTH OIL. MAMMOTH is maintaining

>
artificially high prices by means of what 

>
is called “price gouging.”  This means that Mammoth 

>
is artificially manipulating prices by reducing refinery capacity 

>
or through other forms of market manipulation.

>
If MAMMOTH is not selling any gas, it will be 
>         inclined to STOP PRICE GOUGING. If it reduces its prices, 
>         the other companies will have to follow suit. But to have an
>         impact, we need to reach literally millions of 
>         MAMMOTH gas buyers. It's really simple to do! 
>         Now, don't wimp out on me at this point...keep reading and
>         I'll explain how simple it is to reach millions of people!!

>         I am sending this note to over 30 people. If each of us
>         send it to at least ten more (30 x 10 = 300) ... and
>         those 300 send it to at least ten more (300 x 10 =
>         3,000)...and so on, by the time the message reaches
>         the sixth group of people, we will have reached over
>         THREE MILLION consumers.
>
>         If those three million get excited and pass this on to
>         ten friends each, then 30 million people will have
>         been contacted! If it goes one level further, you
>         guessed it..... THREE HUNDRED MILLION PEOPLE!!!
>
>         Again, all you have to do is send this to 10 people.
>         That's all!
>
>         How long would all that take? If each of us sends
>         this e-mail out to ten more people within one day of
>         receipt, all 300 MILLION people could conceivably be
>         contacted within the next 8 days!!! I'll bet you
>         didn't think you and I had that much potential, did
>         you! Acting together we can make a difference.
>
>         If this makes sense to you, please pass this message
>         on. I suggest that we not buy from MAMMOTH UNTIL
>         THEY LOWER THEIR PRICES TO THE $1.30 RANGE 
>         AND KEEP THEM DOWN. THIS CAN REALLY WORK.
>
>         Lyle Kenney, Director, Research Coordinator

>
Gasoline For All
>         Thanks for your support!
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DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR DISMISSAL

Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6), Defendant Bantam Oil Co., Inc. moves for dismissal of Count I in the above-captioned action.  The grounds for this motion are that Plaintiff has failed to state a claim as a matter of law under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. §§1961 et seq. (“RICO”),  because:

1.  The Plaintiff did not itself rely on the alleged wire fraud and therefore may not pursue its RICO claim; and, 

2. The Defendant and its agent(s) cannot constitute a RICO “association-in-fact” enterprise in light of the rule that a RICO enterprise must “conduct” or “participate in” the affairs of some distinct enterprise and not just its own affairs.

Dated:  October 29, 2006  

By:  Karen Kuhlman


Karen Kuhlman, Esq.



Attorney for the Defendant 
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Decision and Order on Defendant’s Motion for Dismissal


Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6), Defendant Bantam Oil Co. (“Bantam”) has moved to dismiss Plaintiff’s first claim, which alleges that Defendant has violated Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. §§1961 et seq. (“RICO”).  For the reasons discussed below, we agree with the Defendant and dismiss Plaintiff’s RICO claim.

12(b)(6) Standard


Rule 12(b)(6) permits dismissal of a lawsuit for failure to state a claim upon which relief could be granted.  See Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6).  The Rule “requires the Court to construe the complaint in the light most favorable to the plaintiff, accept all the complaint’s factual allegations as true, and determine whether the plaintiff undoubtedly can prove no set of facts in support of the claims that would entitle relief.”  Grindstaff v. Green, 133 F.3d 416, 421 (6th Cir. 1998).  “The Federal Rules of Civil Procedure do not require a claimant to set out in detail the facts upon which he bases his claim.”  Conley v. Gibson, 355 U.S. 41, 47 (1957).  However, “[t]o avoid dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6), a complaint must contain either direct or inferential allegations with respect to all the material elements of the claim.”  Wittsock v. Mark A. Van Sile, Inc., 330 F.3d 899, 902 (6th Cir. 2003).

Conclusions of Law

In Count I of the complaint, the Plaintiff alleges that the Defendant violated the RICO statute, which provides that “[i]t shall be unlawful for any person employed by or associated with any enterprise engaged in, or the activities of which affect, interstate or foreign commerce, to conduct or participate, directly or indirectly, in the conduct of such enterprise's affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity or collection of unlawful debt.” 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c). In order to establish a RICO violation, the Plaintiff must show that Defendant engaged in "(1) conduct, (2) of an enterprise (3) through a pattern (4) of racketeering activity." Sedima, S.P.R.L. v. Imrex Co., 473 U.S. 479, 496 (1985). "In addition, the plaintiff only has standing if, and can only recover to the extent that, he has been injured in his business or property by the [predicate acts] constituting the violation." Id. at 496; see also 18 U.S.C. § 1964(c).


A “pattern of racketeering activity” is demonstrated by “at least two acts of racketeering activity, one of which occurred after the effective date of [RICO] and the last of which occurred within ten years ... after the commission of a prior act of racketeering activity.” 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), § 1961(5). In addition, proof of a pattern of racketeering activity requires a showing that "the racketeering predicates are related, and that they amount to or pose a threat of continued criminal activity." H.J., Inc., v. Nw. Bell Tel. Co., 492 U.S. 229 (1989). Section 1961(1) enumerates specific acts which constitute racketeering activity, including acts of wire fraud indictable under the federal wire fraud statute, 18 U.S.C. § 1343.
  See 18 U.S.C. § 1961(1)(B). 

In the instant action, Plaintiff's RICO claim is premised on predicate acts of wire fraud. (Compl.¶ 34.) 


The Defendant in this case alleges that the Plaintiff has failed to state a claim for a violation of RICO and, on that basis, contends that the complaint must be dismissed. The Court considers each of the Defendant’s two grounds for dismissal separately below:

I.  Reliance 


The initial issue before the court today—one that is a question of first impression in the Ames Circuit—is whether a civil RICO plaintiff alleging mail or wire fraud as predicate acts must have relied on the fraudulent conduct of the defendant in order to successfully state a cause of action.  This is an issue that has caused considerable disagreement among the federal circuit courts and one that the Supreme Court, despite recent acknowledgement that it poses a “substantial question,” has so far declined to explicitly address. See Anza v. Ideal Steel, 126 S. Ct. 1991, 1998 (2006).  


Although the RICO statute itself does not contain a reliance requirement, some of our sister circuits have read such a requirement into the statute, pointing either to the reliance requirement for common-law fraud or other sources.  See, e.g., VanDenBroeck v. CommonPoint Mortgage Co., 210 F.3d 696, 701 (6th Cir. 2000).  In general, these decisions reason that reliance by the plaintiff is a necessary element of a civil RICO claim in order to ensure that fraud perpetrated by the defendant proximately caused the plaintiff’s injuries. See American Chiropractic Ass'n v. Trigon Healthcare, Inc., 367 F.3d 212, 233 (4th Cir.), cert. denied, 125 S.Ct. 479 (2004); Bank of China v. NBM LLC, 359 F.3d 171, 178 (2d Cir. 2004). However, other circuits have reasoned that “[r]eliance is doubtless the most obvious way in which fraud can cause harm, but it is not the only way.…There is no good reason to depart from RICO’s literal language by importing a reliance requirement into RICO.” Systems Management, Inc. v. Loiselle, 303 F.3d 100, 103-104 (1st Cir. 2002).  Thus, the central issue in this dispute is whether “reliance [is] a milepost on the road to causation.”  Holmes v. Sec. Investor Prot. Corp., 503 U.S. 258, 268 (1992), quoting Blackie v. Barrack, 524 F.2d 891, 906 n.22 (9th Cir. 1975).


Among the circuits that have addressed this issue, opinions run the gamut, with some courts declining to impose a reliance requirement, see Systems Management, Inc, 303 F.3d at 104 and Living Designs v. E.I. Dupont de Nemours and Co., 431 F.3d 353, 363 (9th Cir. 2005); others imposing a requirement that the plaintiff must have directly relied on the fraudulent conduct, see Appletree Square I, Ltd. P’ship v. W.R. Grace & Co., 29 F.3d 1283, 1286 (8th Cir. 1994); and still others imposing a requirement of reliance, but not necessarily by the plaintiff, see Proctor & Gamble Co. v. Amway Corp., 242 F.3d 539, 564-65 (5th Cir. 2001) (allowing “a target of a fraud that did not itself rely on the fraud [to] pursue a RICO claim if the other elements of proximate causation are present”).


Because Ames, like other jurisdictions, requires reliance as an element of a common-law fraud claim, this Court will follow the lead of our sister circuits who have imported this element into a civil RICO claim for mail or wire fraud brought under 18 U.S.C. §1964(c).  Although in so doing this Court departs from the usual and wise practice of interpreting statutory language literally, we feel strongly that imposition of a reliance requirement is the only way to ensure that a plaintiff can demonstrate the necessary causation between the fraudulent conduct and the harm.  In the present case, the alleged fraud was perpetrated on consumers, not on the Plaintiff.  Because the Plaintiff in this case did not rely on the complained of actions, it could not possibly demonstrate the proximate causation necessary to sustain its RICO claim.
II.
Enterprise

The second question before the court is whether a corporation and its agent can constitute an association-in-fact RICO enterprise.   In this case, plaintiff Mammoth Oil, Inc. alleges that the defendant, Bantam Oil, Inc., has participated in an association-in-fact RICO enterprise with its marketing and advertising company.  Liability under Section 1962(c) requires the existence of “two distinct entities:  (1) a ‘person’; and (2) an ‘enterprise’ that is not simply the same ‘person’ referred to by a different name.”  Cedric Kushner Promotions, Ltd. v. King, 533 U.S. 158, 161 (2001).  An “enterprise” is defined in 18 U.S.C. §1961(4) as “any individual, partnership, corporation, association, or other legal entity, and any union or group of individuals associated in fact although not a legal entity.”  To satisfy the statutory requirements, plaintiffs must further prove that the defendant “conducted or participated in the conduct of the ‘enterprise’s affairs,’ not just [its] own affairs.”  Reves v. Ernst & Young, 507 U.S. 170, 185 (1993).  


There is general agreement among the circuit courts that a defendant corporation and its own employees cannot form an enterprise that is distinct from the corporation itself.  See e.g., Bachman v. Bear, Stearns, 178 F.3d 930, 932 (7th Cir. 1999), Discon, Inc. v. NYNEX Corp., 93 F.3d 1055, 1063 (2d Cir. 1996); Old Time Enters., Inc. v. International Coffee Corp., 862 F.2d 1213, 1217 (5th Cir. 1989).  Relatedly, our sister courts concur that a RICO enterprise cannot consist of a defendant corporation associated with its own divisions or subsidiary corporations.  See e.g., Brannon v. Boatmen’s First Nat’l Bank of Okla., 153 F.3d 1144, 1148-49 (10th Cir. 1998); Bessette v. Avco Financial Services, Inc., 230 F.3d 439, 448-49 (1st Cir. 2000).  


Our sister courts have disagreed, however, about whether a distinct RICO enterprise exists in the association of the defendant corporation and its non-employee agents.  One contingent has concluded that a RICO enterprise must consist of more than the defendant corporation and its agents conducting its business. See e.g., Riverwoods Chappaqua Corp. v. Marine Midland Bank, N.A., 30 F.3d 339, 344 (2d Cir. 1995); Board of County Commr’s v. Liberty Group, 965 F.2d 879, 885-86 (10th Cir. 1992). A corporation and its agents are not distinct, these courts hold, and therefore cannot form an enterprise for RICO purposes. 
    
In contrast, other courts have held that as long as a legal distinction exists between the defendant corporation and its agents, a plaintiff can legitimately plead the existence of a RICO enterprise.  This expansive reading of the RICO enterprise requirement serves the intention of Congress, these courts argue because in these cases:  “[t]he associated in fact enterprise formed by this union is ‘a being different from, not the same as or part of, the person whose behavior [RICO] was designed to prohibit.’”  Living Designs v. E.I. DuPont, 431 F.3d 353, 361-62 (11th Cir. 2005) (quoting Rae v. Union Bank, 725 F.2d 478, 481 (9th Cir. 1984)).  See also Williams v. Mohawk Industries, 465 F.3d 1277, 1284 (11th Cir. 2006) (holding that Mohawk “and its third-party recruiters are distinct entities that, at least according to the complaint, are engaged in a conspiracy...for Mohawk’s benefit.  As such, the complaint sufficiently alleges an “enterprise” under RICO.”).


As with the reliance question we addressed in Part I, this is an issue of first impression for the Ames Circuit.  We find that the statutory requirement of a RICO enterprise distinct from the corporate defendant has not been met.  Bantam and Mass Marketing have a simple business relationship that does not amount to a separate enterprise:  Mass Marketing creates and implements marketing and advertising campaigns for Bantam, no more and no less.  As a result, Mass Marketing occupies a role that might otherwise be played by a division of or employees of Bantam, and therefore it is not sufficiently distinct from Bantam to create an enterprise for purposes of RICO liability.  This court cannot find that a RICO enterprise exists in this fundamental business relationship.
 

III. Conclusion


For the foregoing reasons, the court GRANTS Defendant’s motion to dismiss Count I of the Complaint.  Having dismissed Count I of the above-captioned matter and now lacking subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s state law claim for defamation, the court dismisses Count II without prejudice.

SO ORDERED

Dated:  November 20, 2006















Eileen Cole









Eileen Cole









United States District Judge
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MAMMOTH OIL CO., INC.,


)







)


Plaintiff, 



)







)

v.





)

Civ. No. 06-868







)

BANTAM OIL CO., INC.,


)







)


Defendant. 



)







)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
Notice is hereby given that Plaintiff appeals to the United States Court of Appeals for the Ames Circuit from a final judgment entered in this action on the 20th day of November, 2006.  The grounds for appeal are that the District Court erred in dismissing Plaintiff’s RICO claim by deciding 1) that reliance by the Plaintiff on the alleged fraud is a requirement of the RICO statute and 2) that the Defendant and its agent do not form a RICO enterprise.  






MAMMOTH OIL CO., INC., 


By:  Jeanne A. Donner

Jeanne A. Donner, Esq.


Attorney for the Plaintiff

Dated: December 1, 2006
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MAMMOTH OIL CO., INC.,
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Appellant, 



)







)

v.





)

Civ. No. 07-30







)

BANTAM OIL CO., INC.,


)







)


Appellee. 



)







)

PROCEDURAL ORDER


The parties are directed to address the following two issues in their submissions to this Court:


1.
Whether a competitor is “injured in his business or property by reason of a 


violation” of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, 18 U.S.C. 


§§ 1961-1968 (“RICO”), where the alleged predicate acts of racketeering activity 

were wire fraud, but the competitor was not the party defrauded and did not rely 


on the alleged fraudulent behavior.


2.
Whether a defendant corporation and its agents can constitute an “enterprise” 


under RICO in light of the settled rule that a RICO defendant must “conduct” or 


“participate” in the affairs of some larger enterprise and not just its own affairs.
So ordered January 6, 2007








Graham Washington








Clerk, Court of Appeals







� � HYPERLINK "http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?DB=1000546&DocName=18USCAS1343&FindType=L&AP=&fn=_top&rs=WLW6.06&mt=LawSchoolPractitioner&vr=2.0&sv=Split" \t "_top" �18 U.S.C. 1343� provides that “[w]hoever, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud, or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises, transmits or causes to be transmitted by means of wire, radio, or television communication in interstate or foreign commerce, any writings, signs, signals, pictures, or sounds for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both ....”


18 U.S.C. � HYPERLINK "http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?DB=1000546&DocName=18USCAS1343&FindType=L&AP=&fn=_top&rs=WLW6.06&mt=LawSchoolPractitioner&vr=2.0&sv=Split" \t "_top" �§ 1343�.


� This association-in-fact alleged by Plaintiff to be a RICO enterprise is precisely the type of “oddly constructed entity” addressed in Riverwoods, but distinguished in Kushner, 533 U.S. at 164.  In Kushner, the Court expressly declined to extend its holding regarding distinctness between the RICO defendant and the RICO enterprise to this type of enterprise.  Id.
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